

=DELTA SIGMA PHI FRATERNITY
Eta Chapter Bylaws

Article 1 – Membership

Section-1.01

The chapter shall recruit continuously throughout the year and shall follow a program of building and maintaining a fraternity of the highest caliber at The University of Texas at Austin and a membership commensurate with those objectives.

Section-1.02

Men shall be recruited in accordance with the regulations of The University of Texas at Austin, The Inter-Fraternity Council, and The National Fraternity.

Section-1.03

Pledging authority shall be delegated to the Rush Committee, pending 51% approval by the active chapter. In the case that fewer than 51% of the active chapter is present, the Rush Committee maintains authority. The Rush Committee shall consist of the Rush Chair and all members of the Rush Committee appointed by the President and approved by simple majority vote of the chapter.

Section-1.04

Any financially current member may request a Pledge Review Board during new business at any regular or called meeting. Discussion shall precede the voting. Five votes are required to send a pledge to a Pledge Review Board. The Pledge Review Board shall consist of the Treasurer, Pledge Educator, President, the pledge's Big Brother and three financially current active members appointed by the President. Any pledge financially delinquent for more than thirty (30) days shall be called for financial review without a chapter vote. The Pledge Review Board shall be scheduled for and convene within 7 days of such chapter vote or determination.

Section-1.05

A financially current active member may request a vote to de-pledge a pledge during new business at any regular or called meeting. Discussion shall precede the voting. A fifty-one (51) percent vote is required to de-pledge a man. No proxy votes are permitted. Voting shall be by secret ballot. Normally, a Pledge Review Board shall have previously been held for any pledge being considered for de-pledging.

Section-1.06

Any man who de-pledges and wishes to re-pledge must express such intent in writing to the Chapter President before being considered for re-pledging by the chapter. A majority vote is required to re-pledge the man.

Section-1.07

Any man who is or has been an initiated member of a chapter or colony of another national social fraternity may not be initiated as a member of Eta Chapter, Delta Sigma Phi Fraternity.

Section-1.08

A pledge must have met all the requirements of the National pledge training program and be financially current to be eligible for initiation.

Section-1.09

Once initiated, a member shall remain active while enrolled as an undergraduate student at The University of Texas at Austin. Any undergraduate member who fails to maintain full membership shall be considered for financial expulsion within ninety (90) days of the date determined that he failed to maintain full membership except as noted in the following paragraphs A through E

A) Inactivity is defined as withdrawing participation from the chapter. This includes inability to attend meetings, social events, voting or any other participation and or collaboration with the chapter.

B) Inactivity is only applicable at a chapter level. Brothers must always be considered "active" on a national and university level.

C) Inactive brothers shall not pay chapter dues the semester they go inactive, but are still responsible for IFC, University, and National Dues. Failure to pay these will result in expulsion due to financial reasons. Upon resuming normal active status, a brother must pay full dues plus an additional twenty (20) percent.

D) A Brother's inactivity must be approved by the EB the semester before said inactivity takes place and financial, medical, or academic criteria must be met.

E) A Brother may not go inactive whilst having an active lease in the house.

Section-1.10

Any member who withdraws or fails to register as a regular student at The University of Texas at Austin during a long session semester shall be on alumni status. However, his full membership shall be reinstated when he registers again as a regular student during any long session semester.

Article 2 – Scholarship

Section-2.01 In the absence of a designated Scholarship chairman, the Vice President shall serve as Scholarship Chairman. It will be the Scholarship Chairman's responsibility to ensure that the chapter recognizes those members who achieve outstanding scholastic performance.

Section-2.02

No member on scholastic probation shall be elected, appointed or serve on the Executive Board. Each elected and appointed member of the Executive Board must present a letter from the University's Registrar's Office stating that they are in good scholastic standing to the Chapter Advisor at the beginning of each semester and prior to being elected or appointed to an Executive Board Position.

Section-2.03

The Secretary must verify each semester the registration status of all actives and pledges after the twelfth day of classes, but no later than the Friday following the twelfth class day, and report any inconsistencies to the Executive Board at the next meeting.

Article 3 – Meetings

Section-3.01

Regular meeting shall be held at a regular time once a week at a time established by the chapter. Exceptions for good cause may be made by the President. The President may change the time or the date of any meeting by giving forty-eight hours posted notice. Members, with good cause, may be excused by the President from individual meetings after submitting a written request to the Secretary at least twenty-four hours prior to the meeting. Requests submitted after a meeting shall be considered for the Executive Board vote at the next Executive Board meeting.

Section-3.02

Special meetings may be called by the President, Chapter Advisor, or President of the Alumni Corporation Board, or any officer of the National Fraternity with at least two (2) days posted notice.

Section-3.03

Only financially current active members shall have the privilege to vote.

Section-3.04

Alumni of the chapter shall have the privilege of attending meetings and the President may recognize them from the floor for discussion. Privileges of addressing the chapter shall never be denied to the Chapter Advisor, the President of the Alumni Corporation Board or any officer of the National Fraternity.

Section-3.05

The quorum required for the transaction of chapter business shall be one-third of the total membership, present and financially current. If by the last regular meeting of a calendar month, a quorum has not been achieved during the month, the President may declare a quorum. Any member may at any time ask for a quorum call.

Section-3.06

The act of the majority of the financially current membership present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the chapter, unless the act of a greater number is required by these bylaws or the constitution or bylaws of the National Fraternity.

Section-3.07

At the beginning of each regular or called meeting, the chapter Treasurer shall determine which members, if any, are not in good financial standing. Payments of any delinquent amounts must be made before the beginning of the meeting in order to qualify a member as being financially current and thus allow him the privilege to vote.

Section-3.8

At the beginning of each semester, the Secretary shall provide to each member a copy of the current chapter bylaws. The Pledge Educator shall provide to each pledge a copy of the current bylaws by the third regular pledge meeting after the formal pinning ceremony,

Section-3.09

No smoking, use of tobacco products or consumption of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted during a chapter meeting.

Section-3.10

The President may, for special occasions, prescribe a dress code. This dress code must be announced at least forty-eight hours preceding the event.

Section-3.11

NEW BUSINESS

Chapter meetings shall be conducted in accordance with standard parliamentary procedure as prescribed by Robert's Rules of Order. All motions must be submitted in writing or electronically via formal email to the secretary at the time they are presented. All motions will be considered as new business at the next regular meeting. A two-thirds vote is required to consider the motion at the meeting at which it is presented. A motion to amend the bylaws may not be considered at the meeting at which the motion is presented.

Section-3.12

The President and the Sergeant-at-Arms are responsible for insuring proper conduct of all members. They have the authority to fine and/or expel from the meeting any brother who causes excessive disturbance.

Section-3.13

If the meeting has not been called to order twenty minutes after its scheduled time the meeting shall be canceled.

Article 4 – Officers

Section-4.01

The elected officers of the chapter shall be the President, Vice-President, Treasurer, Secretary, and Sergeant-at-Arms.

Section-4.02

Appointed officers are Pledge Educator, Pledge Trainer, Rush Chair, Social Chairman, House Manager, Junior and Senior IFC Representatives, and any other offices created by the President. All appointed officers must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the chapter

Section-4.03

The term of office of Rush Chair shall run from October through March and from April through September. The terms of all other appointed officers shall be by semester (Fall-June through December and Spring- January through May).

Section-4.04

The duties and responsibilities of all officers shall be those defined in the Fraternity Manual and these by-laws. All officers shall be required by the President to read and familiarize themselves with their respective duties and standard parliamentary procedures.

Section-4.05

All elected officers and the House Manager are required to live in the house during the school year. Failure to do so will result in forfeiture of the office. Should a vacancy occur for the spring semester in the in the office of Vice-President, Secretary, or Sergeant-at-Arms, up to two of those elected officers may be excused by majority vote of the chapter from living in the house for that semester if their current housing contracts cannot be terminated without economic or other penalties.

Section-4.06

The President and Treasurer shall pay three-quarters (3/4) of their dues amount beginning with the first bill for September and end it with the last bill for May provided they remain in office for the full term of office. Should the President or Treasurer leave office before the normal conclusion of the term of their reduced billing shall cease effective with the beginning of the month immediately the last day in such office. The House Manager will pay one-half of his dues amount while holding the office. This privilege may be revoked from any individual who proves negligent of or ineffective at his duties at the direction of a two-thirds vote of the chapter. These privileges will come to effect only when the chapter has above 50 active members.

Article 5 – Elections

Section-5.01

Elections shall be held at the first regular meeting in March of each year. Notice of the election will be given by the President two weeks in advance. New officers will take office at the first regular meeting in April.

Section-5.02

Only members who are financially current and are in good scholastic standing may be nominated or elected to an office. Their financial and scholastic standing must be provided to the Chapter Advisor prior to the Elections.

Section-5.03

Nominations shall be made one week prior to the elections.

Section-5.04

Voting shall be done by secret ballot in the same order as the officers are listed in Section 4.01. Before each office is voted on, additional nominations may be made only from those candidates defeated for offices previously voted on.

Section-5.05

If no candidate obtains a majority on the first ballot, a runoff election shall be held between the two (2) candidates who have the greatest number of votes. If two or more candidates are tied for second position, all candidates tied for second will be included in the runoff. In this case, if no candidate receives a majority in the balloting, a second run-off election shall be held between the two candidates who received the greatest number of votes.

Section-5.06

The offices of President and Treasurer shall be filled from brothers, who at the time of the election have been active for at least twelve (12) months. However, if no more than one qualified brother chooses to run for these positions, then brothers who have been active for at least three (3) months and are otherwise qualified can also be nominated. The offices of Vice President, Secretary, Sergeant-at-Arms, Vice President of Recruitment, and Vice President of Membership Development may be filled by members who, at the time of the election, have been active members for a period of at least nine (9) months. Appointed positions are open to all active members except for the Pledge Educator and Pledge Trainer who must have been active for at least one semester. However if the Chapter's active membership is below forty (40), the offices of Vice-President, Secretary, Sergeant-at-Arms, Pledge Educator and Pledge Trainer shall be filled by members who, at the time of the election or appointment, have been active members for a period of at least three (3) months.

Section-5.07

There will be a one-month officer-training period lasting from the day of the election to the date of officer installation. During this period the members of the Executive Board shall have a combined retreat of current and incoming officers to ensure a smooth transition of officers.

Section-5.08

If a vacancy in an elected office occurs during the summer session it shall be resolved by the Executive Board by a two-thirds vote. The chapter will hold an election at the second regular meeting in the fall semester to fill the office. Nominations and voting shall be held in a like manner of the normal elections.

Section-5.09

A vacancy in any elected office during the regular school term shall be filled by a special election within two weeks from the date when the vacancy occurs. Nominations and voting shall be held in a like manner of the normal elections.

Section-5.10 Elections for the Spring Semester and elections due to vacancies shall begin with nominations at the first chapter meeting in November. Voting will occur at the following meeting. If needed, appointments for new Committee Chairmen will be announced for approval by the chapter at the third meeting in November.

Article 6 – Recall

Section-6.01

Any officer, whether elected or appointed, who proves negligent or ineffective in the office, may be recalled by a two-thirds majority vote of the chapter. The voting shall be by secret ballot.

Section-6.02

The Alumni Corporation Board shall have the power to remove any chapter officer whom it deems negligent or ineffective.

Section-6.03

During the summer session, the Executive Board may remove by a two-thirds vote any officer who is shown to be negligent or ineffective in the office. The chapter shall either confirm or reject this decision at its first regular meeting in the fall semester in accordance with section 6.01.

Section-6.04

Any officer, whether elected or appointed, who is more than two months delinquent in dues or rent may be recalled by a two-thirds majority vote of the chapter.

Article 7 - The Executive Board

Section-7.01

The members of the Executive Board shall be as follows: President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, Sergeant-at-Arms, Vice President of Recruitment, Vice President of Membership Development, Social Chairman, Pledge Educator, House Manager, Rush Chair, and Senior and Junior IFC Representatives. The Chapter Advisor shall serve as an ex-officio but nonvoting member of the board. The Vice-President shall preside over all Executive Board meetings. The President shall preside in the absence of the

Vice-President. No member may hold two Executive Board positions. Officers elected in March who were on the Executive Board prior to the election may serve in both positions, but with only one vote per member, until June 1 unless a replacement has been appointed and approved.

Section-7.02

The Executive Board shall meet weekly before the regular chapter meetings. It shall consider matters involving the good of the chapter. It shall formulate the policy recommendations that are to be presented to the chapter for approval.

Section-7.04

A majority of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section-7.05

The Scholarship Chairman shall devise an academic plan and submit it to the Executive Board for approval. Upon approval, the Scholarship Chairman shall be in charge of enforcing the academic plan. Failure by an active to follow the academic plan will subject him to the standard disciplinary procedures as set forth by the chapter.

Article 8 – Committees

Section-8.01

The President shall appoint committee chairman and committee members to handle the specific tasks for which they are created. Only appointed committee members may vote on committee business.

Section-8.02

Committee chairman shall make recommendations to the President for membership on their respective committees. The Vice-President shall be an ex-officio non-voting member of the Campus Involvement, Social, Tailgate Chair and Greek Week committees. The Vice President of Recruitment shall be an ex-officio non-voting member of the Recruitment Committee. The Vice President of Membership Development shall be an ex-officio non-voting member of the New Member Education, Brotherhood, Community Service and Philanthropy committees. The Sergeant at Arms shall be an ex-officio non-voting member of the Academic Committee.

Section-8.03

A by-laws committee shall be appointed at the first regular meeting in April to review the current bylaws and submit any amendments that the committee deems necessary no later than the second meeting in April.

Article 9 – Finances

Section-9.01

Immediately after the spring elections, the newly elected Vice President shall chair a budget committee to prepare the annual chapter budget for the upcoming fiscal year. This budget shall be submitted to the chapter for approval no later than the fourth regular meeting in April. The immediate past Treasurer and the newly elected Treasurer shall be members of the committee. *(In any case that there are only two members on the committee, the current House Manager will serve as the third entity of the budget committee).* A copy of the approved budget must be forwarded to the Alumni Corporation Board for approval.

Section-9.02

The annual chapter budget shall require a two-thirds vote of the chapter for adoption.

Section-9.03

Dues shall be charged on a semester basis: fall semester and spring semester. With the possible exception of a payment schedule agreed to between an individual brother and the Treasurer. Dues and other fees of the fraternity shall be charged to active and pledged members on the same basis, except as outlined in Section 9.04.

Section-9.04

The Executive Board shall set pledge dues on a semester basis. The Executive Board shall also set the payment schedule for pledges on a semester basis.

Section-9.05

Pledges who de-pledge or who are removed from pledgship shall be refunded the amount paid toward the initiation fee. Any prepaid dues shall be prorated. The pledge fee shall not be refunded.

Section-9.06

The Treasurer shall place any member who is not financially current by a set deadline on full social suspension until the full amount of the bill is paid. Members on social suspension may not attend social events. The Executive Board may make exceptions for good cause. Social events are defined as any events that incur expenditures against the social budget.

Section-9.07

A late payment fee of \$10.00 per day will be assessed if the dues are not paid by the set date. A late payment fee as outlined in the room contract will be assessed if the rent is not paid by the date due according to the room lease agreement.

Section-9.08

A returned check fee will be charged for any returned check based on the bank's check return fee.

Section-9.09

All in-house members must return their room key to the house manager at the end of the contractual period. Failure to return the room key will result in a \$50.00 charge to be deducted from their deposit.

Section-9.10

No alcoholic beverages will be purchased with fraternity funds.

Section-9.11

Rent shall be set by and paid to the Alumni Corporation Board. Each resident shall be responsible for paying to the Alumni Corporation Board. Each resident shall be responsible for paying his individual rent dues defined in the room lease and any late fee fees set by the Alumni Corporation Board.

Article 10-Housing

Section-10.01

Priority of residence and room choice in the chapter house shall be as follows: Elected officers, Full year lease, GPA, Pledge Class, and alphabetical last name.

Section-10.02

All house residents must be enrolled at The University of Texas at Austin during long sessions and must be full dues paying members in accordance with Section 1.09.

Section-10.03

All house residents must be financially current at the beginning of each semester. The Executive Board may make exceptions in unusual circumstances by majority vote.

Section-10.04

In the case of a vacant room or rooms in the house during the long session, those brothers who have not lived in the house for two full semesters, excluding summer sessions, shall be charged a maximum of \$100.00 per month per vacant room. Those members currently living in the house, members whose jobs require residency outside of the house or those members initiated during the fall semester and prior to the following spring semester will not be assessed the \$100.00 per month per vacant room charge. The total per month charge assessed to members shall not exceed the rent required for the existing vacant rooms for that month.

Section-10.05

If vacancies exist in the house, chapter alumni may obtain a semester-long housing contract with the approval of a two-thirds vote of the chapter and approval of the Alumni Corporation Board.

Article 11-Fines

Section-11.01

Any member failing to attend any part of the National Fraternity Informal Initiation shall be fined \$20.00 per hour missed up to a maximum of \$100. The fine may be excused by action taken by the Executive Board at their meeting prior to the informal initiation.

Section-11.02

Any member failing to attend any part of the National Fraternity Formal Initiation shall be fined \$30.00. The fine may be excused by action taken by the Executive Board at their meeting prior to the formal initiation.

Section-11.03

Any member who is late for any chapter meeting shall incur a fine of \$10.00 unless the brother is excused from the meeting by the President or the Secretary. The Secretary shall prepare and turn over to the Sergeant-at-Arms weekly, a list of unexcused absences. Members leaving the chapter meeting without permission from the President shall be considered absent and fined accordingly. Being late is defined as arriving after roll call.

Section-11.04

Costs for repairs or replacement of furniture, fixtures or other house property shall be assessed to the member or pledge responsible for the breakage or damage.

Section-11.05

Members absent during Formal Rush shall be fined \$25.00 per period per day unless excused by the President beforehand.

Section-11.06

Members or pledges directly responsible for fines or late charges levied against the chapter shall be held liable for such fines or charges.

Section-11.07

At the beginning of each semester, the House Manager shall submit a list of house rules and accompanying fines to the chapter. The house rules must receive a two-thirds majority vote of the chapter to be adopted. The previous house rules shall be in effect until the new house rules are adopted. A copy of the house rules must be given to all active members and pledges.

Section-11.08

All fines must be posted weekly by the Sergeant-at-Arms. Fines may be appealed before the next weekly meeting in a scheduled hearing at the next Executive Board meeting, or Standards Board committee meeting (see Article 12 section 4). All fines must be posted within fourteen days of the infraction or the fine is nullified. An Executive Board member may assess fines except as noted in Section 3.12.

Section-11.09

Provided a member is incapable of appealing his fine at the provided time, he may submit a written or electronic appeal given 24 hours notice to the President or Sergeant-at-Arms. Failure to attend a hearing or submit an appeal without proper excuse will subject the member to punishment at the sole discretion of EB/standards board.

DELTA SIGMA PHI FRATERNITY

Eta Standard Bylaws

Article 12 – Standards Board

Section 12.1: Purpose and Function

A) Policies of the Standards Board shall be supportive and representative of the Rules and Regulations set forth in the Constitution, Code of Conduct, and all Policies and By-Laws of the Delta Sigma Phi Fraternity Eta Chapter at the University of Texas at Austin.

B) The Standards Board shall serve as a judicial body, charged with fostering the individual growth of members and encouraging the ideals of The Delta Sigma Phi Fraternity. The Standards Board shall uphold the principles expressed in the Preamble and Constitution of Delta Sigma Phi Eta Chapter at the University of Texas at Austin.

Section 12.2 Powers, Jurisdiction, and Limitations to Powers

Section 12.21 Powers

A) The Standards Board shall abide by a policy of due process in support of Brotherhood. Decisions made by the Standards Board shall be with the intent of constructive criticism, and penalizing should be avoided whenever possible.

B) The Standards Board shall have the authority to impose financial penalties, bar member from attending events, impose community service hours, place members on an Academic plan, and impose any other reasonable sanction that it finds necessary to correct the behavior of the member.

Section 12.22 The Standards Board shall preside on matters based on the following goals:

A) To uphold standards of membership.

B) To address grievances among brothers.

C) To uphold member attendance policy

Section 12.23 Limitations

The Standards Board shall under no circumstances have the power to expel members from the chapter. Recommendations may be made to the ACB and to the chapter as a whole for such decisions.

Section 12.3 Calls to the Standards Board

The Standards Board Chairman shall present all cases to the Standards Board.

A) Issues will be reported to the Standards Board Chairman through an incident report. Such issues shall then be carried to the Standards Board.

B) Brothers shall be notified at least 48 hours in advance if they are called before the Standards Board.

C) In the event the Sergeant-at-Arms has acted against any standard of conduct within jurisdiction of the Standards Board, the President shall appoint a brother to bring charges against the Sergeant-at-Arms. The President may also personally fulfill this role.

Section 12.4 Board Construction and Position Duties

Sections 12.41: The Standards Board shall consist the following:

A) Four (4) voting members with one (1) from each academic class.

B) The Standards Board Chairman shall be elected with the primary purpose of providing logistical support for all operations of the Standards Board and to lead discussions and present cases at Standards Board Meetings.

C) The Sergeant-at-Arms shall act as a representative of the Executive Board and the chapter as a whole at Standards Board meetings, but not serve as a member of the board.

i. The role of the Sergeant-at-Arms as a mediator is concurrent with his duties as Risk Management Director. The Standards Board Chairman shall act primarily to promote discussion during meetings.

Section 12.42: The members of the Standards Board shall be appointed two weeks after Executive Board Elections by the Sergeant at Arms. The President and Vice-President may act as an ex-officio member.

Section 12.5 Meetings of the Standards Board

Section 12.51: Meetings of the Standards Board shall be held at a time specified by the Standards Board Chairman to address issues as they arise. The Standards Board should meet at least twice per month during the academic year, unless no business needs to be conducted.

Section 12.52: Meetings shall be conducted with the intent of thoughtful discussion with proactive enforcement measures.

Section 12.53: Quorum, measured as 50% plus one of all Standards Board members, must be present for meetings.

A) In critical instances where votes may be taken, a simple majority of members present is needed for any action taken by the Standards Board.

Section 12.54: The Standards Board shall hear all opposing arguments to an issue before making a judgment.

Section 12.55: The Sergeant-at-Arms can present cases with evidence to the Standards Board Chairman.

Section 12.56: The Sergeant-at-Arms shall present meeting minutes of the Standards Board at the next meeting of the Executive Board

A) A member of the Standards Board will be appointed by the Standards Board Chairman to take minutes at every meeting.

Section 12.6: All Standards Board meetings are closed and considered confidential, although, any brother may be asked to appear at a Standards Board meeting as a witness.

Section 12.61: Any Member may request to appear before the Standards Board so long as they inform the Standards Board Chairman 24 hours before the meeting.

Section 12.7: Recall of a Member of the Standards board

Section 12.71: If the Sergeant-at-Arms has evidence that a member of Standards Board is not fulfilling his duties, the member may be brought up for removal.

A) Should this occur, a hearing for the removal of a member of Standards Board will be held by the Executive Board of the Fraternity.

i. Executive Board member who brings up the removal will not receive a vote.

Section 12.8: The decision of removal of a member of Standards board can be reversed by the chapter and/or the ACB with an appeal before the Chapter or ACB and a two-thirds (2/3) of quorum vote.

Section 12.9: Probation (either Social, Academic, Financial, or Disciplinary) will consist of:

Section 12.91: Specifications

A) Being barred from all fraternity functions (socials, formals, intramurals, etc.) until cause of probation is remedied.

B) No voting rights at chapter meetings

C) Additional sanctions determined on a case-by-case basis by Standards Board with the intent of rehabilitating behavior.

Section 12.92: Academic Probation

A) A member will be put on social probation for one semester following any semester he makes less than a 2.0 GPA.

i. If the member has two semesters with less than a 2.0 GPA he is automatically expelled from Delta Sigma Phi Fraternity.

Article 13 - Chapter Advisor

Section-13.01

Once a year, preferably at the joint Executive Board retreat, the Executive Board shall conduct an evaluation of the performance of the Chapter Advisor. The results of this evaluation shall be discussed with the chapter advisor to promote successful chapter guidance. Issues of grave concern dealing with the Chapter Advisor should be brought to the attention of the Alumni Corporation Board.

Article 14 – Exclusions

Section-14.01

Those conditions not covered by these bylaws shall be held in accordance with National Fraternity policy as determined by the Executive Board and the Chapter Advisor.

Section-14.02

The chapter agrees to abide by all city, state and federal laws.

Article 15 – Amendments

Section-15.01

These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting by two-thirds majority vote provided that the vote is at least one more than fifty percent of the total membership and provided the amendment was presented at a previous week's meeting. Such amendment must be submitted for final approval to the Alumni Corporation Board, along with the reason for the amendment. No amendment will become effective until approval has been obtained from the Alumni Corporation Board.

Section-15.02

These bylaws are subject to examination by a representative of the National Fraternity. Should they be in conflict with provisions of the Constitution or bylaws of the National Fraternity, the chapter shall make the appropriate changes as directed.

Article 16-Adoption

Section-16.01

These bylaws shall be adopted by a two-thirds majority vote provided that vote is at least one more than fifty percent of the total membership.

APPROVAL

These Bylaws were approved by the chapter at a regular chapter meeting on _____, 2013 by a vote in accordance with the adoption provisions of these Bylaws.

These Bylaws were approved by the Alumni Corporation Board at a regular meeting on _____, 2013 by a majority vote at which a quorum was present.

Alumni Corporation President Alumni Corporation Secretary